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THE CITY OF KEY WEST 

PLANNING BOARD 
Staff Report 

 

 

To:   Chair and Planning Board Members 

 

From:   Melissa Paul-Leto, Planner Analyst 

 

Through:  Thaddeus Cohen, Planning Director 

 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Transient License Transfer – 1911 Venetia Street (RE # 00063400-

000000, AK # 1063835) to 524 Front Street (RE # 00000330-000000, 

AK # 1000329) – A request to transfer one transient license from property 

located within the Commercial Limited (CL) Zoning District to property 

located within the Duval Street Gulfside (HRCC-1) Zoning District 

pursuant to Section 122-1339 of the Land Development Regulations of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Key West, Florida. 

 

Site Data: 

 Sender Site Receiver Site 

License Owner: Richard Aaron Haskins 524 Front LLC 

Property Owner: A.H. of Monroe County, Inc. Fred Hassani, AMBR 

Agent: Adele V. Stones Adele V. Stones 

Location: 1911 Venetia Street 524 Front Street 

RE #: 00063400-000000 00000330-000000 

AK #: 1063835 1000329 

Zoning: Commercial Limited (CL) Duval Street Gulfside (HRCC-3) 

Existing Use: Transient residential Non-transient residential 

Proposed Use: Convalescent non transient 

residential 

Transient residential 

 

  
 

 

 

Sender Site 

Receiver Site 
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Background: 

The subject transient license (or business tax receipt) is one of nine transient licenses associated 

with the Marty’s Place / AIDS Help property located at 1521-1523-1525 Bertha Street, 1512-

1516 Dennis Street and 1901-1903-1905-1907-1909-1911-1913 Venetia Street, which is the 

sender site. The transient use of the sender site units has ceased, but the associated nine transient 

licenses were sold to new owners to be transferred to eligible receiver sites. The licenses were 

then placed in “unassigned” status. Eight of the nine transient licenses have already been 

transferred to receiver sites or extinguished after conversion for non-transient use. The subject 

request would be the 9th final license to be transferred respectively, leaving zero licenses in 

unassigned status. The following table summarizes the status of the nine transient licenses 

originating from the sender site. 

 

 
 

The receiver site at 524 Front Street consists of one single-family, non-transient, market-rate 

dwelling unit. The 1 bedroom unit is located on the second floor of the building containing 

approximately 653.75 square feet of floor area. 524 Front Street would convert from non-

transient to transient rental upon approval of the transient license transfer 

 

 

Relevant Code Sections: 

The purpose of City Code Chapter 122, Article V, Division 6 “Transient Units” outlined in 

Section 122-1336 is to: 

 Provide for the transfer of existing transient units and transient licenses in order to reduce 

noncomplying density, structures and uses;  

 Remove legal nonconforming transient uses from zoning districts that now prohibit them;  

 Encourage permanent residential housing by relocating transient licenses;  

 Provide for the conversion of transient units to single-family dwellings by the transfer of 

units; 

 Allow for redevelopment without increasing the population requiring evacuation during 

emergencies or increasing other public services;  
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 Protect environmentally sensitive lands; and 

 Encourage redevelopment under the existing Building Permit Allocation System (BPAS) that 

limits the allowable number of residential and transient units. 

 

City Code Section 122-1339(a) states that a business tax receipt (e.g., license) for transient use of 

a unit may itself be transferred from an area where transient uses are prohibited to a receiver site 

without the accompanying transfer of the unit. In addition, licenses may be transferred from the 

HNC-1 and HNC-3 Zoning Districts. A transfer of a license under this section does not allow a 

loss of affordable housing at the receiver site. 

 

City Code Section 122-1339(b) states that where a license alone is transferred, the Planning 

Board shall consider whether the receiver site is suitable for transient use in the zoning district, 

shall consider the relative size of the unit from which the license is transferred, and shall 

consider the room configuration of both sites to maintain approximately the same or less net 

number of occupants. 

 

Analysis: 

The proposed transient license transfer does not involve the transfer of transient units. The 

receiver site of 524 Front Street is an existing recognized dwelling unit. 

 

The proposed transient license transfer would move a transient use of a residential dwelling unit 

from an area where transient uses are prohibited (CL Zoning District) to an area where transient 

uses are permitted (HRCC-1 Zoning District). The existing use of the receiver site at 524 Front 

Street is non-transient residential. The proposed transfer would not result in a loss of affordable 

housing because there is no existing deed-restricted affordable housing at the receiver site. 

 

The sender site unit is a one-bedroom unit totaling in 300-square-feet of residential use. The 

receiver site is a one-bedroom unit totaling in 653.75 -square-foot residential use. Planning staff 

has determined that the intent of Sec. 122-1339 (b) is being met and that the net occupancy for 

both units would remain at one bedroom.  Therefore, approximately the same or less net number 

of occupants would be maintained. 

 

A consent by mortgagee for the sender site was included in the application, pursuant to the 

requirement in City Code Section 122-1345. 

 

The following table summarizes the applicable approval criteria for a transient license transfer 

pursuant to City Code Section 122-1339. 

 

Criteria Analysis 
Complies? 
(Yes or No) 

Transient license transfer from an area where 
transient uses are prohibited 

Sender site zoning is CL, which 
prohibits transient uses. 

Yes 

Transient license transfer from HNC-1 and HNC-3 
Zoning Districts 

N/A N/A 
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Criteria Analysis 
Complies? 
(Yes or No) 

Transfer would not result in a loss of affordable 
housing at the receiver site 

No existing deed-restricted 
affordable housing at the receiver 
site. 

Yes 

Receiver site suitable for transient use Receiver site zoning is HRCC-1, 
which permits transient uses. 

Yes 

Relative size of the unit from which the license is 
transferred 

Sender site: 300 square feet total 
Receiver site: 653.75 square feet 

Yes1 

Room configuration of both sites to maintain 
approximately the same or less net number of 
occupants 

Sender site: 1 bedrooms total 
Receiver site: 1 bedrooms total 

Yes 

1. Planning staff has determined that the intent of Sec. 122-1339 (b) is being met and that the net occupancy 

for both units would remain at one bedroom.  Therefore, approximately the same or less net number of 

occupants would be maintained at both sites.  

 

Recommendation: 

Based on the above analysis of the standards for considering transfers of transient business tax 

receipts in Section 122-1339 of the Land Development Regulations, the Planning Department 

recommends the request to transfer one transient business tax receipt from 1911 Venetia Street to 

524 Front Street be APPROVED with the following conditions: 

 

1. All requirements of City Code Section 122-1371 shall be met for the transient use of the 

residential dwelling at 524 Front Street.  

 

2. The structure proposed to be used on a transient basis shall comply with all applicable codes 

and requirements of the Building Department, Fire Department and all other regulatory 

agencies. 



















 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Authorization Form 

 

 





 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Verification Form 












































































































